



















































































































































































































































































































































































Federal Historic Preservation Case Law

the project remained a Federal undertaking requiring
review. Id. at 1445 (citing Morris County Trust for
Historic Preservation v. Pierce. 714 F.2d 271, 280
(3d Cir. 1983)).

The court also rejected the district court’s
reasoning that allowing plaintiffs’ action would
“unduly penalize™ the private developers. 948 F.2d
at 1442. The court found that “the interests of the
non-Federal developers are not an appropriatc basis
for concluding that Vieux Carré’s suit is moot.” Id.
at 1445. The court noted that the Section 106 review
process calls for consultation with all intercsted
parties when considering mitigation  options,
cnsuring consideration of the developer’s interests.
Id. The Corps also claimed that the casc was moot
because the court was no longer able to grant relief to
plaintiffs duc to substantial completion of the
project. The court of appeals rejected that argument
as well, concluding that there still could be effective
rclief for plaintiffs. /d. at 1446. The court observed
that it was impossible to pre-judge the outcome of
the Section 106 review process and that, conceivably,
a broad range of remedics could result from the
consultation process. Id. at 1447. According to the
court, the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation,
not the district court, should decide what relief is
available. /d.

Remanding the casc to the district court once
again, the court of appcals dirccted it to make the
determinations required in its previous order. 11 the
district court again determincd the case to be moot,
it must inquire as to the applicability of the exception
to the mooincss doctrinc for cascs “capablc of
repetition, yet cvading review.” /d. at 1449,

On remand, the district court found that the park
phase of the project was properly authorized under a
nationwide permit and involved  “truly
inconsequential™ navigation activitics. Reviewing the
case for the third time, the court of appeals alfirmed
the district court decision, concluding that the Corps
was not arbitrary or capricious in finding a
nationwide permit appropriate given the nature of the
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changes to the wharf. 40 F.3d at 116. Approving thc
district court’s analysis of inconsequentiality, the
court found that the district court appropriately
mcasured inconsequentiality from the impact on
navigable waters. The court found that even if the
districc court should have considered the
consequences of its activitiecs on the historic
propertics in measuring inconsequcntiality, the
Corps’ decision was not arbitrary or capricious.

The court of appeals also delermined that
although the Corps did not comply with its own
rcgulations regarding consideration of historic
properties, plaintiffs did not have any remedy under
RHA or the Corps” regulations. The court stated that
compliance with 33 C.F.R. § 330.5(b)(9), which
requires consideration of adversc cffects (o historic
properties, is a condition to the activity licensed
under the nationwide permit; if the condition is not
followed, the Corps regulations provide that the
permit is not valid and the project must be authorized
through an individual permit. 40 F.3d at 117 (citing
33C.FR. §§330.1, 330.5(b)). Although the project
therefore went forward without a valid permit in
violation of Secction 10 of RHA. the court
nevertheless concluded that RHA did not give
plaintiffs a privatc right of action against thc Corps.
nor did it require the Corps to enforcc the provision
violated in this case. /d. The Attornev General. not
the Corps, has discretionary enforcement power over
such violations.
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National Trust for Historic Preservation .
Blanck, Civ. Action No. 94-1091 (PLF) (D.D.C.
Sep. 13, 1996).

he National Trust for Historic Prescrvation and
Save Our Seminary at Forest Glen, Marvland,
sought declaratory and injunctive reclicf based on a
demolition by neglect theory to compel the Army to
prescrve the National Park Seminary Historic
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District, which was listed in the National Register of
Historic Places in 1972. Plaintiffs subsequently filed
a motion for a preliminary injunction to order the
Army to conduct emergency repairs on historic
buildings pending completion of the litigation.

Over the years, the two dozen buildings and
structures in the historic district deteriorated and
became significantly damaged due to lack of
maintenance. The Army considered demolishing the
buildings and developed scveral master plans for the
arca that proposed demolition; however, those plans
were not carricd out. Years later, the Army
considered excessing the historic district in light of
its continucd deterioration and lack of use. As the
result of the decision to excess the property, in 1991,
the Army initiated Section 106 consultation with the
Advisorv Council on Historic Preservation and the
State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO).

The district court addresscd in detail the
question of the appropriate standard of rcview of the
Army’s actions under the National Historic
Preservation Act (NHPA). Dcfendants argued that
the court should apply the arbitrary and capricious
standard of review under the Administralive
Procedure Act (APA). Slip op. at 11. Plamtiffs
asseried that NHPA creates an implicd private right
of action through the attorncys™ fces provision in
Section 305 of NHPA. Such a right of action could
“trump the deferential standard of review provided
by the APA.” Id. at 12. The court acknowledged that
a number of other cases have held NHPA does
crcatc an implied private right of action but, even
where such a right was found, the courts applied a
deferential standard like that of APA. See id.

In determining whether NHPA establishes a
private right of action, the court acknowledged that
the existence of an attorneys™ fees provision is
cvidence of an intent to crcate a private right of
action, although it is not dispositive. Id. at 13.
Nonetheless, the district court decided that Congress
did not intend to create a private right of action under
NHPA. The court reasoned that a private right of

Court Decisions

action would not provide any more relief to plaintiffs
than a suit brought under APA because, like APA,
NHPA docs not provide for attornevs” fees but only
for enforcement of agency compliance. Because APA
does not provide for attorncys’ fees, the court
interpreted the legislative history of Section 303 of
NHPA as providing for attorneys’ fees for actions
brought under APA but not creating a different
standard of review. /d. at 14. Although the court
reviewed the Army’s actions under the arbitrary and
capricious standard of APA based on the
administrative record created by the agency, the court
did allow plaintiffs to supplement the administrative
record. Id. at 16 n.10.

Addressing the merits of the casc in light of
Section 106, plaintiffs argued that the Army made an
affirmative decision not to cxcess the historic district
in 1984 and that such a decision was an undertaking
under Section 106. Id. at 25. Accordingly. the
Army’s failure to initiate consultation with the
Council and the Marvland SHPO prior to that
decision in 1984 was a violation of Section 106. Id.
The court rejected the Army’s argument that there
was no undertaking until 1991 when the Army
affirmatively decided to excess the property. 1d. at
22. The court acknowledged that an agency'’'s failurc
to act, without more, is not an undertaking. /d. at 23.
However, if as in this case a “considered affirmative
decision” not to act has “serious and long-term
consequences” for the historic propertics, then
Section 106 is implicated. Id. at 23.

With regard to Section 110, plaintiffs argued
that the Army violated Section 110(a)(1) of NHPA
which requires that Federal agencics assume
responsibility, consistent with the mission of the
agency, for the preservation of historic properties
owned or controlled by the agency. Specifically,
plaintiffs asserted that the Army’s [ailure to prevent
decay and deterioration of the historic district
violated Scction 110, and that Section 110 creates
substantive responsibilities. Slip op. at 19.
Defendants argued that Scction 110 is merely a
procedural provision and does not require that
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agencies preserve historic properties, but merely that
they consider the effect of their actions on historic
properties. /d.

The court interpreted Scction 110 as “an
clucidation and extension of the Scction 106 process
but not its replacement by new and independent
substantive obligations of a different kind.™ /d. at 27
(citing Lee v. Thornburgh, 877 F.2d 1053, 1057
(D.C. Cir. 1989)), the court obscrved that Congress
did not intend to change the prescrvation
responsibilitics of Federal agencies when Section
110 was added to NHPA in 1980. /d. at 30. The
court also interpreted the Section 110 guidelines
issued by the Secrctary of the Interior as requiring
Federal agencics merely to “consider™ ways to use
historic properties and to integrate them inlo agency
programs, but not as instructing agencics that they
“have an affirmative obligation to spend money to
preserve historic buildings.” Jd. at 31.

The court also examined the Armiv's compliance
with its own regulations, which rcquire the
preparation of a historic preservation plan as the
primary mechanism for compliancc with Scction 110
of NHPA. Plaintiffs alleged that the Armyv violated
its own regulations by allowing the historic district to
deteriorate and by failing to ratifv and implement a
historic preservation plan, which had been draflted by
a consultant in 1992. The Army countcred that it had
complied with its regulations and Scction 110 bv
developing the cultural resource management plan in
1992. The court agrced with defendants and
determined that the cultural resourcc management
plan served as the historic preservation plan for the
historic district. Id. at 32. The court found that sincc
the adoption of the plan in 1992, the Army was in
compliance with its own regulations and Section | 10,
particularly in light of the substantial sums of money
the Army spent on repairs and maintcnance (cven
though the amount spent did not prevent significant
deterioration) and its cfforts to obtain additional
funding to carry out the plan. /d. at 33-34. However,
from 1984, when thc Army promulgated its
regulations, to 1992, when the cultural resource
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management plan was devcloped, the court found
that the Army had violated Section 110 and its own
regulations. /d. at 35. The court also noted that,
becausc NHPA does not dclegate to the Army any
interpretive or enforcement authority, the Army’s
own intcrpretation of NHPA is not cntitled to any
particular defercnce by the court. /d. at 32 n. 15.

Despitc the finding that the Army violated
Section 106 and Section 110 and that “thec Army’s
noncompliance has caused rcal harm,” the court did
not order the Army to repair the buildings. /d. at 36.
The court viewed the requircments of Section 110 as
limited and did not view Section 110 as adding
substantive obligations on a Federal agency. /d.
According to the court, when Section 110 was added
in 1980, it “was not intended to expand the
preservationist responsibilities of federal agencies
beyond what the NHPA already required.” /d. at 37.
The court detcrmined that Section 110 did not
require the Army to undertake preservation bevond
the requircments of Scction 106 and its own historic
preservation plan. /d.

Finding that the Army’s expenditure of nearly
two million dollars on repairs since 1992 was “not
insignificant,” the court concluded that the Army had
followcd the requirements of Section 110 of NHPA,
its implementing guidclines and Army regulations.
The court emphasized, howcver, that “mecrely
becausc a statutory rcquirement is described as
“procedural” does not render it any less meaningful or
mandatory.” /d. at 38. The court recognized the valuc
of the con-sultative process itsclf and stressed that its
con-clusion was nol to be “misunderstood as
somchow diminishing thc Army’s obligations under
the NHPA or excusing its derclictions over the vears

Lo d.

Accordingly, thc court denied plamntiffs’
motions for a preliminary injunction and summary
judgment and granted defendant’s summary
judgment motion.
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Streater v. United States Department of
Transportation, No. CIV. A, 95-2162 (E.D. Pa.
Mar. 25, 1996).

laintiffs, an individual and an environmental

association, challenged a 3.5-milc extension of
a highway approved by the Department of
Transportation (DOT). Alleging violations of the
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and the
National Historic Prescrvation Act (NHPA),
plaintiffs argued that DOT failed to consider the
impact of the intcrchange design and to identify all
historic properties potentially affccied by the project.

The district court opinion addressed the issue of
plaintiffs’ standing to suc. focusing on plaintiffs’
alleged injurics. The court first addressed plaintiffs’
claim that thev would be harmed by a ncgative
economic impact of the routc expansion as a result of
development in the surrounding arca which plaintiffs
argued would be an indircct cffect of the expansion.
The court found that the plaintiffs would not suffer
cconomic harm because they did not allege that they
owned businesses in the area or lived or shopped in
the arcas identificd as being alfected by the project.
Slip op. at 2. Specifically. the court determined that
plaintiffs had not asserted a particularized interest
and could, therefore, not mect the standing
requirement. Further, the court found that plaintiffs
had not demonstrated a causal connection between
the extension of the routc and cconomic harm. The
court declined to accept plaintiffs” allcgations that
the 3.5-mile road project would have so signilicant
an impact on businesscs in three ncarby citics that
the quality of lifc and shopping would decline,
finding them too speculative. Slip op. at 3. With
regard (o the allegations of cconomic harm, the court
finallv found that plainti{fs™ allcgations would not be
redressable by the court.
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As another injury plaintiffs alleged that the road
expansion would result in suburban sprawl and thus
affect plaintiffs” aesthetic intercst in the enjovment of
the green spaces in the valley. The court determined
that thc possible suburban sprawl was not
sufficiently caused by the road project but, rather,
was contingent upon other factors such as willing
buvers and sellers of property and approval of
municipal subdivisions. Thus, the court held that
plaintiffs failed to demonstrate a causal connection
between the extension project and the suburban
sprawl. Slip op. at 4.

With regard to plaintiffs” allegation that
defendants did not take into account the effect of the
extension on historic properties in the area, the court
found plaintifTs did not identify anv particular harm
which might result to either the historic structures or
to plaintiffs” enjovment of them because plaintiffs’
allcgations were viewed as an “abstract injury or
generalized grievance™ the court held that plaintiffs
failed to meet the standing requirements. /d. The
court observed that plaintiffs had improperly allcged
injury flowing from the alleged violation of the law
rather than an injury arising from an identified
impact upon the historic structurcs which affects
plaintiffs™ aesthetic interests. Further, the court noted
that plaintiffs failed to assert that they visited or
planned 1o visit the hisloric sites, explaining that the
merc possibility or gencral intention of someday
visiting or enjoying a sitc is insufficient to establish
an imminent injury to plaintiffs’ aesthctic interest.
Similarly, as a final argument, the individual plaintiff
alleged that travel by bicvele or on foot would be
hindered by the route expansion; however, the court
found that the individual plaintiff did not allege a
particularized injury because he failed to assert that
he ever traveled by foot or bicycle between the two
cities allegedlv affected by the project.

The court dismissed the action for lack of
standing.
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